

1 [Parking Violation Penalties.]

2

3 **Ordinance amending San Francisco Traffic Code Sections 32, 32.1, 32.1.1 through**  
4 **32.1.7, 32.1.9, 32.1.10, 32.1.11, 32.2, 32.2.1, 32.2.2, 32.2.3, 32.3, 32.3.1, 32.5, 32.6.1,**  
5 **32.6.2, 32.6.3, 32.6.5, 32.6.6, 32.6.7, 32.6.8, 32.6.10, 32.6.11, 32.6.12, 32.6.13, 32.6.14,**  
6 **32.6.16 through 32.6.29, 32.20, 210, and 412 regarding penalties for parking violations**  
7 **and authorizing the setting of specific penalties for parking violations through a**  
8 **schedule of fines approved by ordinance of the Board of Supervisors.**

9 Note: Additions are *single-underline italics Times New Roman*;  
10 deletions are *strikethrough italics Times New Roman*.  
11 Board amendment additions are double underlined.  
12 Board amendment deletions are ~~strikethrough normal~~.

12 Be it ordained by the People of the City and County of San Francisco:

13 Section 1. The San Francisco Traffic Code is hereby amended by amending Sections  
14 32, 32.1, 32.1.1 through 32.1.7, 32.1.9, 32.1.10, 32.1.11, 32.2, 32.2.1, 32.2.2, 32.2.3, 32.3,  
15 32.3.1, 32.5, 32.6.1, 32.6.2, 32.6.3, 32.6.5, 32.6.6, 32.6.7, 32.6.8, 32.6.10, 32.6.11, 32.6.12,  
16 32.6.13, 32.6.14, 32.6.16 through 32.6.29, 32.20, 210, and 412, to read as follows:

17 **Sec. 32. PARKING CONTROL.**

18 After a survey of parking conditions and a public hearing, the Board of Supervisors  
19 shall designate by resolution those streets upon which parking is prohibited or restricted and  
20 the time period applicable thereto, and those streets upon which stopping is prohibited. Such  
21 designation shall be made as will promote uniformly efficient and safe use of such streets for  
22 public street purposes.

23 The Department of Parking and Traffic shall erect, or cause to be erected,  
24 appropriate signs giving notice thereof.

25

1           Any person violating any of the class of resolutions now or hereinafter in effect,  
2 which are referred to in the following subsections of this Section, shall be guilty of an infraction  
3 and upon conviction shall be subject to the penalties provided in that particular subsection  
4 designating the class or type of violation and a schedule of fines approved by ordinance of the  
5 Board of Supervisors as authorized under California Vehicle Code section 40203.5:

- 6           (a) Resolution or Ordinance prohibiting stopping on any street or alley:  
7           (1) Within the Downtown Core Area: Fine of not less than \$40 or more than \$100;  
8           (2) In all other areas: Fine of not less than \$20 or more than \$100.  
9           (b) Resolution prohibiting parking on any street or alley: Fine of not less than \$20  
10 or more than \$100.

11           (c) Resolution prohibiting parking on any street or alley for a longer period of time  
12 than permitted in said resolution or Department Order (1) within the Downtown Core Area:  
13 Fine of not less than \$20 or more than \$100; (2) in all other areas: Fine of not less than \$12 or  
14 more than \$100; provided, however, that each and every hour that a vehicle remains parked  
15 on any street or alley in violation of this subsection after issuance of the first citation therefor  
16 shall constitute a separate and distinct offense and shall be punishable accordingly. The  
17 provisions of this Subsection (c) shall not apply to violations of resolutions prohibiting parking  
18 for a longer time than permitted in said resolution in parking meter zones established pursuant  
19 to the provisions of Section 203 of this Code. Violations of such resolutions shall be punished  
20 under the provisions of Section 210 of this Code.

21           (d) Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Code, any disabled person  
22 entitled to and using a vehicle equipped with special attachments and devices to enable such  
23 person to operate said vehicle shall be permitted to park such vehicle on any street or alley for  
24 a period of time longer than prescribed by resolution enacted pursuant to Subsection (c)  
25

1 hereof, during all hours when it is otherwise lawful for a vehicle to park continuously in the  
2 same street or alley, and subject to the following requirements: Such disabled person shall  
3 possess an identification card issued by the Chief of Police, certifying that he or she meets the  
4 requirements of this Subsection and identifying the vehicle. The disabled person shall exhibit  
5 such identification card when it is requested by any peace officer or Parking Control Officer.  
6 Such vehicle shall bear a small and conspicuous sticker indicating the right to park as in this  
7 Section provided, the sticker to be approved by the Chief of Police and to be at all times  
8 displayed on the front windshield in the lower corner farthest removed from the driver's  
9 position.

10 The permission granted hereunder to park on any street or alley specified in any  
11 resolution adopted pursuant to Subsection (c) hereof for a greater length of time than the  
12 period of time prescribed therein, shall not include any permission in relation to stopping or  
13 parking on any streets or alleys where either is prohibited by resolution adopted pursuant to  
14 Subsections (a) or (b) hereof or by the provisions of Sections 38.A, 38.B, 38.C and 38.D of  
15 this Code.

16 **SEC. 32.1. PARKING CONTROL, PAVED AREAS IN CITY HALL BLOCK;**  
17 ***PENALTIES FOR VIOLATIONS.***

18 No person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
19 unattended, within the property lines of the block upon which the San Francisco City Hall is  
20 situated, bounded by the westerly line of Polk Street, the northerly line of Grove Street, the  
21 easterly line of Van Ness Avenue and the southerly line of McAllister Street, except (1) an  
22 officer or employee of the City and County of San Francisco, having a permit therefor issued  
23 by the Chief Administrative Officer and during the conduct by such officer or employee of the  
24 business of the City and County, and (2) any person engaged in the loading or unloading of  
25

1 freight upon or from a vehicle in the ramps or paved areas adjoining the northerly and  
2 southerly entrances to the City Hall. Said Chief Administrative Officer shall have authority to  
3 designate areas within the property lines of said block wherein various permittees shall be  
4 permitted to park or leave vehicles, and no vehicles shall be parked or left in any area other  
5 than so designated. *Violation of this Section is an infraction and any vehicle stopped, parked, or left*  
6 *standing in any place prohibited by this Section is an obstruction to the free use of property and a*  
7 *nuisance within the meaning of Part III of the Civil Code of California relating to nuisances and the*  
8 *abatement thereof.*

9 **SEC. 32.1.1. PARKING CONTROL, MAIN LIBRARY PROPERTY; ~~PENALTIES FOR~~**  
10 **~~VIOLATION.~~**

11 No person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
12 unattended, within the property lines of the block upon which the San Francisco Main Library  
13 is situated, bounded by Larkin, Grove, Hyde, and Fulton Streets, except (1) an officer or  
14 employee of the City and County of San Francisco, having a permit therefor issued by the City  
15 Librarian and during the conduct by such officer or employee of the business of the City and  
16 County, and (2) any person engaged in the loading or unloading of freight upon or from a  
17 vehicle in the garage or paved areas within said San Francisco Main Library property lines.  
18 Said City Librarian shall have authority to designate areas within the property lines of the  
19 block wherein various permittees shall be permitted to park or leave vehicles, and no vehicles  
20 shall be parked or left in any area other than so designated. *Violation of this Section is an*  
21 *infraction and any vehicle stopped, parked, or left standing in any place prohibited by this Section is an*  
22 *obstruction to the free use of property and a nuisance within the meaning of Division 4, Part III of the*  
23 *Civil Code of California relating to nuisances and the abatement thereof.*

24  
25

1           **SEC. 32.1.2. PARKING CONTROL, EUREKA VALLEY AND WESTERN ADDITION**  
2 **BRANCH LIBRARIES; ~~PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION.~~**

3           Parking within the property lines of the Eureka Valley Branch Library, 3555 16th Street,  
4 and Western Addition Branch Library, 1550 Scott Street, shall be restricted to one hour at all  
5 times when these branches are open to the public. This restriction shall not be applicable to  
6 the following permittees designated by the Librarian as follows: (1) an officer or employee of  
7 the City and County of San Francisco, having a permit therefor issued by the Librarian and  
8 during the conduct by such officer or employee of the business of the City and County of San  
9 Francisco, and (2) any person engaged in the loading or unloading of freight upon or from a  
10 vehicle. The Librarian shall have the authority to designate areas within the property lines of  
11 said branch libraries wherein various permittees shall be permitted to park or leave vehicles,  
12 and no vehicles shall be parked or left in any area other than so designated.

13           No person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
14 unattended, within the property lines of the areas upon which the Eureka Valley Branch  
15 Library and the Western Addition Branch Library are situated when said branches are closed  
16 to the public. *Violation of this paragraph is an infraction and any vehicle stopped, parked, or left*  
17 *standing within the parking areas of these branch libraries when the library is closed, is an obstruction*  
18 *to the free use of property and a nuisance within the meaning of Division 4, Part III of the Civil Code of*  
19 *California relating to nuisances and the abatement thereof.*

20           **SEC. 32.1.3. PARKING CONTROL, DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES**  
21 **PROPERTY; ~~PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION.~~**

22           No person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
23 unattended, within the property lines of the Department of Social Services building, 150 Otis  
24 Street (Lot 7, Block 3513), and the vacant area situate at the gore corner of Mission and Otis  
25

1 Streets and Duboce Avenue (portion of Lot 6A, Block 3512), except (1) an officer or employee  
2 of the City and County of San Francisco having a permit therefor issued by the General  
3 Manager of the Department of Social Services and during the conduct by such officer or  
4 employee of the business of the City and County, and (2) any person engaged in the loading  
5 or unloading of passengers or freight upon or from a vehicle within said property lines. Said  
6 General Manager shall have authority to designate areas within said property lines wherein  
7 various permittees shall be permitted to park or leave vehicles, and no vehicles shall be  
8 parked or left in any area other than so designated. *Violation of this Section is an infraction and*  
9 *any vehicle stopped, parked, or left standing in any place prohibited by this Section is an obstruction to*  
10 *the free use of property and a nuisance within the meaning of Division 4, Part III of the Civil Code of*  
11 *California relating to nuisances and the abatement thereof.*

12 **SEC. 32.1.4. PARKING CONTROL ON SAN FRANCISCO HOUSING AUTHORITY**  
13 **PROPERTY; ~~PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION.~~**

14 No person shall stop, park or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
15 unattended, within the property lines of the following listed San Francisco Housing Authority  
16 property: CAL 1-1 (Holly Courts), CAL 1-2 (Potrero Terrace), CAL 1-3 (Sunnydale), CAL 1-4  
17 (Valencia Gardens), CAL 1-5 (Bernal Dwellings), CAL 1-8 (Westside Courts), CAL 1-9 (Harbor  
18 Slope), CAL 1-10 (Potrero Annex), CAL 1-11 (North Beach), CAL 1-15 (Ping Yuen), CAL 1-16  
19 (Alemany), CAL 1-17 (A) [Hunters Point (A)], CAL 1-17 (B) [Hunters Point (B)], CAL 1-18(1)  
20 (J.F. Kennedy Towers), CAL 1-18(2) (Yerba Buena Plaza), CAL 1-18(3) (Hunters View), CAL  
21 1-18(4) (Alice Griffith), CAL 1-18(5) (Yerba Buena Annex), CAL 1-18(6) (Ping Yuen North),  
22 CAL 1-18(7) (Hayes Valley), CAL 1-18(10) (Woodside Gardens), CAL 1-19-1(1) (990 Pacific  
23 Avenue), CAL 1-20 (3850 18th Street), CAL 1-21 (320-330 Clementina), CAL 1-23 (350 Ellis  
24 Street), CAL 1-28 (666 Ellis Street), CAL 1-30 (345 Hermann Street, 77 Coleridge Street, 105  
25

1 Lundy's Lane), CAL 1-31 (25 Sanchez Street), CAL 1-32 (1760 Bush Street), CAL 1-33 (275  
2 Thrift Street), CAL 1-34 (4101 Noriega Street, 220 Randolph Street, 363 Noe Street), except  
3 (1) an officer of the City and County of San Francisco or employee of the San Francisco  
4 Housing Authority on official business, (2) other authorized persons to be determined by the  
5 Executive Director of the San Francisco Housing Authority, (3) permittees of the San  
6 Francisco Housing Authority, and (4) any person engaged in loading or unloading of  
7 passengers or freight upon or from a vehicle in a paved area within the San Francisco  
8 Housing Authority property designated above. Said Executive Director of the San Francisco  
9 Housing Authority shall have authority to designate areas where various permittees shall be  
10 entitled to park or leave vehicles, and no vehicle shall be parked, or left in any area other than  
11 so designated. *Violation of this Section is an infraction, and any vehicle stopped, parked, or left*  
12 *standing in any place prohibited by this Section is an obstruction to the free use of property and a*  
13 *nuisance within the meaning of Division 4, Part III, of the Civil Code of California relating to*  
14 *nuisances and the abatement thereof.*

15 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 40 of this Code, the provisions of this Section  
16 shall not be effective until signs giving notice of said provisions are posted at the locations  
17 specified in Section 42 of this Code.

18 **SEC. 32.1.5. PARKING CONTROL, PAVED AREA OF OFF-STREET MUNICIPAL**  
19 **RAILWAY TERMINALS.**

20 No person shall stop, park or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
21 unattended, within the property lines of the Municipal Railway's terminals situated at the  
22 following locations: (1) Ferry Loop bounded by Steuart Street, Mission Street, The  
23 Embarcadero and a line approximately 260 feet northerly parallel to Mission Street, (2) Myra  
24 Way at Dalewood Way, (3) Cabrillo Street at La Playa, and (4) Phelan Loop at Ocean  
25

1 Avenue, except San Francisco Municipal Railway transit vehicles. *Violation of this Section is an*  
2 *infraction and any vehicle stopped, parked or left standing in any place prohibited by this Section is an*  
3 *obstruction to the free use of property and a nuisance within the meaning of Division 4, Part III of the*  
4 *Civil Code of California relating to nuisance and the abatement thereof.*

5 **SEC. 32.1.6. PARKING CONTROL, CASTRO STREET STATION PLAZA;**  
6 ***PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION.***

7 No person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
8 unattended, within the Castro Street Station Plaza approximately bounded by the south  
9 curblineline of Market Street on the north, Castro Street on the east, the south property line of  
10 Market Street on the south and Collingwood Street on the west, except for motorists gaining  
11 access to or from the private garages on the south side of Market Street between Castro and  
12 Collingwood Streets. The Department of Parking and Traffic shall erect, or cause to be  
13 erected, appropriate signs giving notice thereof. *Violation of this Section is an infraction and any*  
14 *vehicle stopped, parked, or left standing in any place prohibited by this Section is an obstruction to the*  
15 *free use of property and a nuisance within the meaning of Division 4, Part III of the Civil Code of*  
16 *California relating to nuisance and the abatement thereof.*

17 **SEC. 32.1.7. PARKING CONTROL, SAN FRANCISCO UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT**  
18 **PROPERTY; *PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION.***

19 No person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
20 unattended, within the property lines of Block 815 upon which the San Francisco Unified  
21 School District building is situated, and on the parking lot located on the westerly portion of  
22 Block 762, except (1) an officer or employee of the City and County of San Francisco, having  
23 a permit therefor issued by the Superintendent of Schools and during the conduct by such  
24 officer or employee of the business of the City and County, and (2) any person engaged in the  
25

1 loading and unloading of passengers or freight upon or from a vehicle within said property  
2 lines. Said Superintendent shall have authority to designate areas where various permittees  
3 shall be entitled to park or leave vehicles and no vehicle shall be parked or left in any area  
4 other than as so designated. *Violation of this Section is an infraction and any vehicle stopped,*  
5 *parked, or left standing in any place prohibited by this Section is an obstruction to the free use of*  
6 *property and a nuisance within the meaning of Division 4, Part III, of the Civil Code of California*  
7 *relating to nuisances and the abatement thereof.*

8 **SEC. 32.1.9. PARKING CONTROL, PROPERTY UNDER THE JURISDICTION AND**  
9 **CONTROL OF THE SAN FRANCISCO PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION AND ITS**  
10 **DEPARTMENTS AND BUREAUS; ~~PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION.~~**

11 No person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
12 unattended, within the property lines of any facility under the jurisdiction and control of the  
13 San Francisco Public Utilities Commission and its departments and bureaus, except (1) an  
14 officer or employee of the City and County of San Francisco, having a permit therefor issued  
15 by the General Manager of Public Utilities and during the conduct by such officer or employee  
16 of the business of the City and County, and (2) any person engaged in loading and unloading  
17 of passengers or freight upon or from a vehicle within such property lines, and (3) any person  
18 conducting any business with the City and County of San Francisco when such business must  
19 be conducted within any facility to which the property above referenced is attached. The  
20 General Manager shall have the authority to designate areas where various permittees shall  
21 be entitled to leave vehicles and no vehicle shall be parked or left in the area other than as so  
22 designated. *Violation of this Section is an infraction and any vehicle stopped, parked or left standing*  
23 *in any place prohibited by this Section is an obstruction to the free use of property and a nuisance*

24  
25

1 *within the meaning of Division 4, Part III of the Civil Code of California relating to nuisances and the*  
2 *abatement thereof.*

3 When the General Manager has designated a permit area, he shall have posted a sign  
4 giving notice that pursuant to California Vehicle Code Section 22651, any vehicles which do  
5 not have permits parked or left standing in that area shall be subject to removal.

6 **SEC. 32.1.10. PARKING CONTROL, PORTIONS OF WASHINGTON, MASON AND**  
7 **JACKSON STREETS; ~~PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION.~~**

8 No person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
9 unattended, at any time, on both sides of Washington Street from Mason Street to a point 210  
10 feet westerly, south side of Jackson Street from Mason to a point 210 feet westerly, and the  
11 west side of Mason Street from Jackson to Washington, except an officer or employee of the  
12 City and County of San Francisco having a permit therefor issued by the San Francisco Public  
13 Utilities Commission and during the conduct of such officer or employee of the business of the  
14 City and County. Said Public Utilities Commission shall have authority to designate areas  
15 where various permittees shall be entitled to park or leave vehicles and no vehicles shall be  
16 parked or left in any area other than as so designated. *Violation of this Section is an infraction*  
17 *and any vehicles stopped, parked, or left standing in any place prohibited by this Section is an*  
18 *obstruction to the free use of property and a nuisance within the meaning of Division 4, Part III of the*  
19 *Civil Code of California relating to nuisance and the abatement thereof.*

20 **SEC. 32.1.11. PARKING CONTROL, PROPERTY UNDER THE JURISDICTION AND**  
21 **CONTROL OF THE SAN FRANCISCO DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND ITS**  
22 **BUREAUS AND DIVISIONS; ~~PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION.~~**

23 The Director of Public Works shall have the authority to designate areas, under the  
24 jurisdiction and control of the San Francisco Department of Public Works and its Bureaus and  
25

1 Divisions, where no vehicle shall be parked or left in the area so designated. *Violation of this*  
2 *Section is an infraction and any vehicle stopped, parked or left standing in any place prohibited by this*  
3 *Section is an obstruction to the free use of property and a nuisance within the meaning of Division 4,*  
4 *Part III of the Civil Code of California relating to nuisances and the abatement thereof.*

5 When the Director of Public Works has designated such a restricted area, he shall  
6 have posted a sign giving notice that pursuant to California Vehicle Code Section 22651, any  
7 vehicles parked or left standing in the area shall be subject to removal.

8 **SEC. 32.2. PARKING CONTROL, SAN FRANCISCO GENERAL HOSPITAL**  
9 **PROPERTY AND AREA; ~~PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION.~~**

10 No person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
11 unattended, within the property lines of San Francisco General Hospital, including the block  
12 bounded by 22nd Street, Vermont Street, 23rd Street, and Potrero Avenue and the area  
13 bounded on three sides by San Bruno Avenue, 22nd Street, and Potrero Avenue and  
14 extending northward approximately 816 feet from 22nd Street, said area being occupied in  
15 part by the Maternity and Psychiatric buildings of San Francisco General Hospital, and also  
16 including the north side of 22nd Street from Potrero Avenue to San Bruno Avenue, the south  
17 side of 22nd Street from Potrero Avenue to Vermont Street, the west side of San Bruno  
18 Avenue north of 22nd Street, and both sides of Vermont Street between San Bruno Avenue  
19 and 23rd Street, said area being adjacent to and servicing San Francisco General Hospital,  
20 except (1) an officer or employee of the City and County of San Francisco or an employee or  
21 staff member of the Stanford University or University of California Medical Schools or any  
22 other person having an unexpired permit therefor authorized by the Executive Administrator of  
23 San Francisco General Hospital, and (2) any person engaged in the loading or unloading of  
24 passengers or freight upon or from a vehicle in a paved area within said San Francisco

25

1 General Hospital property lines. Said Executive Administrator shall have authority to  
2 designate areas where various permittees shall be entitled to park or leave vehicles and no  
3 vehicle shall be parked or left in any area other than as so designated. *Violation of this Section*  
4 *is an infraction and any vehicle stopped, parked, or left standing in any place prohibited by this Section*  
5 *is an obstruction to the free use of property and a nuisance within the meaning of Division 4, Part III of*  
6 *the Civil Code of California relating to nuisances and the abatement thereof.*

7 **SEC. 32.2.1. PARKING CONTROL, EUREKA-NOE DISTRICT HEALTH CENTER**  
8 **NO. 1 PROPERTY; ~~PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION.~~**

9 No person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
10 unattended, within the property lines of the area upon which the Eureka-Noe District Health  
11 Center No. 1 is situated on 17th Street between Pond and Prosper Streets (Lot 49, Block  
12 3564), except (1) an officer or employee of the City and County of San Francisco, having a  
13 permit therefor issued by the District Health Officer and during the conduct by such officer or  
14 employee of the business of the City and County, and (2) any person engaged in the loading  
15 and unloading of passengers or freight upon or from a vehicle in a paved area within said  
16 Eureka-Noe District Health Center No. 1 property lines. Said District Health Officer shall have  
17 authority to designate areas where various permittees shall be entitled to park or leave  
18 vehicles and no vehicle shall be parked or left in any area other than as so designated.  
19 *Violation of this Section is an infraction and any vehicle stopped, parked, or left standing in any place*  
20 *prohibited by this Section is an obstruction to the free use of property and a nuisance within the*  
21 *meaning of Division 4, Part III of the Civil Code of California relating to nuisances and the abatement*  
22 *thereof.*

23 **SEC. 32.2.2. PARKING CONTROL, SUNSET-RICHMOND DISTRICT HEALTH**  
24 **CENTER NO. 5; ~~PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION.~~**

25

1           No person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
2           unattended, within the property lines of the area upon which the Sunset-Richmond District  
3           Health Center No. 5 is situated at 1351 Twenty-Fourth Avenue (Lot 7, Block 1779), except (1)  
4           an officer or employee of the City and County of San Francisco having a permit therefor  
5           issued by the District Health Officer and during the conduct by such officer or employee of the  
6           business of the City and County, and (2) any person engaged in the loading or unloading of  
7           passengers or freight upon or from a vehicle in a paved area within said property lines. Said  
8           District Health Officer shall have authority to designate areas where various permittees shall  
9           be permitted to park or leave vehicles, and no vehicle shall be parked or left in any area other  
10          than so designated. *Violation of this Section is an infraction and any vehicle stopped, parked, or left*  
11          *standing in any place prohibited by this Section is an obstruction to the free use of property and a*  
12          *nuisance within the meaning of Division 4 Part III of the Civil Code of California relating to nuisances*  
13          *and the abatement thereof.*

14           **SEC. 32.2.3. PARKING CONTROL, NORTH EAST DISTRICT HEALTH CENTER NO.**  
15          **4 PROPERTY; ~~PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION.~~**

16          No person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
17          unattended, within the property lines of the area upon which the North East District Health  
18          Center No. 4 is situated on Mason Street at Broadway, except (1) an officer or employee of  
19          the City and County of San Francisco, having a permit therefor issued by the Director of  
20          Public Health or District Health Officer and during the conduct by such officer or employee of  
21          the business of the City and County, and (2) any person engaged in the loading or unloading  
22          of passengers or freight upon or from a vehicle in a paved area within said North East District  
23          Health Center No. 4 property lines. Said District Health Officer shall have authority to  
24          designate areas where various permittees shall be entitled to park or leave vehicles and no  
25

1 vehicles shall be parked or left in any area other than as so designated. *Violation of this Section*  
2 *is an infraction and any vehicle stopped, parked or left standing in any place prohibited by this Section*  
3 *is an obstruction to the free use of property and a nuisance within the meaning of Division 4, Part III of*  
4 *the Civil Code of California relating to nuisances and the abatement thereof.*

5 **SEC. 32.3. PARKING CONTROL, LAGUNA HONDA HOSPITAL PROPERTY;**  
6 ~~*PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION.*~~

7 No person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
8 unattended, within the property lines of Laguna Honda Hospital including the area bordered  
9 by Woodside Avenue, Laguna Honda Boulevard, the Water Department property at northwest  
10 Clarendon Avenue, Midtown Residential Development, and the Youth Guidance Center,  
11 except (1) an officer or employee of the City and County of San Francisco or an employee or  
12 staff member of the Stanford University or University of California Medical Schools having an  
13 unexpired permit therefor issued by the Superintendent of Laguna Honda Hospital, and (2)  
14 any person engaged in the loading or unloading of passengers or freight upon or from a  
15 vehicle in a paved area within said Laguna Honda Hospital property lines. Said  
16 Superintendent shall have authority to designate areas where various permittees shall be  
17 entitled to park or leave vehicles and no vehicle shall be parked or left in any area other than  
18 so designated. *Violation of this Section is an infraction and any vehicle stopped, parked, or left*  
19 *standing in any place prohibited by this Section is an obstruction to the free use of property and a*  
20 *nuisance within the meaning of Division 4, Part III of the Civil Code of California relating to nuisances*  
21 *and the abatement thereof.*

22 **SEC. 32.3.1. PARKING CONTROL, PAVED AREAS AND STRUCTURES ON THE**  
23 **CITY-OWNED PROPERTY OF THE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH GROVE STREET**  
24 **GARAGE;** ~~*PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION.*~~

25

1           No person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
2 unattended, within the property lines of the San Francisco Department of Health, 101 Grove  
3 Street Garage, except (1) official City-owned vehicles under the jurisdiction of the Department  
4 of Health, and (2) an officer or employee of the City and County of San Francisco having a  
5 permit therefor issued by either the Business Office or Garage Attendant of the Department of  
6 Health and during the conduct by such officer or employee of the business of the City and  
7 County, and (3) any person engaged in the loading or unloading of freight upon or from a  
8 vehicle on the structures or paved areas. *Violation of the Section is an infraction and any vehicle*  
9 *stopped, parked or left standing in any place prohibited by this Section is an obstruction to the free use*  
10 *of property and a nuisance within the meaning of Division 4, Part III of the Civil Code of California*  
11 *relating to nuisance and the abatement thereof.*

12           **SEC. 32.5. PARKING CONTROL, YOUTH GUIDANCE CENTER PROPERTY;**  
13 ***PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION.***

14           No person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
15 unattended, within the property lines of Youth Guidance Center including the area bounded on  
16 the north by Assessor's Block 2836, on the northeast by Panorama Drive, on the east by  
17 Assessor's Block 2821, on the southeast by Portola Drive, on the south by Woodside Avenue  
18 and on the west by the property lines of Laguna Honda Hospital, except (1) an officer or  
19 employee of the City and County of San Francisco having an unexpired permit therefor issued  
20 by the Chief Probation Officer, and (2) any person engaged in the loading or unloading of  
21 passengers or freight upon or from a vehicle in the paved area within said Youth Guidance  
22 Center property lines. Said chief Probation Officer shall have authority to designate areas  
23 where various permittees shall be permitted to park or leave vehicles and no vehicle shall be  
24 parked or left in any area other than so designated. *Violation of this Section is an infraction and*  
25

1 ~~any vehicle stopped, parked or left standing in any place prohibited by this Section is an obstruction to~~  
2 ~~the free use of property and a nuisance within the meaning of Division 4, Part III of the Civil Code of~~  
3 ~~California relating to nuisances and the abatement thereof.~~

4 **SEC. 32.6.1. PARKING CONTROL, PAVED AREAS AND STRUCTURES ON THE**  
5 **CITY-OPERATED PROPERTY ON THE RIGHT-OF-WAY OF THE JAMES LICK FREEWAY**  
6 **UTILIZED FOR ADDITIONAL PARKING BY THE HALL OF JUSTICE FACILITY;**  
7 ~~*PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION.*~~

8 No person shall stop, park or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
9 unattended, within the property lines of the area upon which the right-of-way of the James  
10 Lick Freeway is situated, bounded by the northwesterly side of Ahern Street, the  
11 southwesterly side of Sixth Street, the northwesterly side of the right-of- way of the James  
12 Lick Freeway, and the northeasterly side of Harriet Street, except (1) official City-owned  
13 vehicles under the jurisdiction of the Police Department and (2) an officer or employee of the  
14 City and County of San Francisco having a permit therefor issued by the Chief of Police and  
15 during the conduct by such officer or employee of the business of the City and County.

16 ~~*Violation of this Section is an infraction and any vehicle stopped, parked, or left standing in any place*~~  
17 ~~*prohibited by this Section is an obstruction to the free use of property and a nuisance within the*~~  
18 ~~*meaning of Division 4, Part III of the Civil Code of California relating to nuisances and the abatement*~~  
19 ~~*thereof.*~~

20 **SEC. 32.6.2. PARKING CONTROL, GROVE STREET, NORTH SIDE, BETWEEN**  
21 **VAN NESS AVENUE AND POLK STREET FROM 8 A.M. TO 5 P.M., MONDAY THROUGH**  
22 **FRIDAY.**

23 No person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
24 unattended, on that portion of Grove Street, north side, between Van Ness Avenue and Polk  
25

1 Street from 8 a.m. to 5 p.m., Monday through Friday, except officially City-owned vehicles  
2 displaying a permit authorizing parking in such zones issued by the Chief Administrative  
3 Officer. *Violation of this Section is an infraction and any vehicle stopped, parked or left standing in*  
4 *that portion of Grove Street in said time prohibited by this Section is an obstruction to the free use of*  
5 *property and a nuisance within the meaning of Division 4, Part III of the Civil Code of California*  
6 *relating to nuisance and the abatement thereof.*

7 **SEC. 32.6.3. PARKING CONTROL, PORTIONS OF SEVENTH STREET, AHERN**  
8 **WAY, AND HARRIET STREET; ~~PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION.~~**

9 Except in bus zones established pursuant to Section 62 of this Article or in loading  
10 zones established pursuant to Sections 38.B, 38.B.1, 38.C, 38.D, 38.G, 38.J, 38.K, and 38.L  
11 of this Article, no person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
12 unattended, at any time, on the east side of Seventh Street between Harrison and Bryant  
13 Streets; on the south side of Ahern Way from a point 20 feet east of Harriet Street to Sixth  
14 Street; and on the east side of Harriet Street between Harrison and Bryant Streets, except  
15 official City-owned police vehicles displaying a permit authorizing parking in such zones  
16 issued by the Chief of Police. The provisions of this Section shall not apply when parking  
17 prohibition regulations for street cleaning purposes are in effect. *Violation of this Section is an*  
18 *obstruction to the free use of property and a nuisance within the meaning of Division 4, Part III of the*  
19 *Civil Code of California relating to nuisances and the abatement thereof.*

20 **SEC. 32.6.5. PARKING CONTROL, PAVED AREAS AND STRUCTURES ON THE**  
21 **CITY-OPERATED PROPERTY COMMONLY REFERRED TO AS 970 BRYANT STREET**  
22 **AND UTILIZED FOR PARKING BY THE HALL OF JUSTICE FACILITY; ~~PENALTIES FOR~~**  
23 **~~VIOLATION.~~**

24  
25

1 No person shall stop, park or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
2 unattended, within the property lines of the parking lot commonly known as 970 Bryant Street  
3 (Block 3758) and located between the easterly side of the entrance to Interstate 80 at 8th  
4 Street and the Hall of Justice Service Station at 950 Bryant Street, except those vehicles  
5 having a valid permit to park thereon issued by the Chief of Police, and being (1) a City-owned  
6 vehicle under the jurisdiction of the Police Department, or (2) a privately owned vehicle of a  
7 Police Officer or employee of the City and County of San Francisco during the conduct of the  
8 business of the City and County of San Francisco.

9 *Violation of this Section is an infraction and any vehicle stopped, parked or left standing in any*  
10 *place prohibited by this Section is a nuisance within the meaning of Division 4, Part III of the Civil*  
11 *Code of California relating to nuisances and the abatement thereof.*

12 **SEC. 32.6.6. PARKING CONTROL, THE FIRE DEPARTMENT OFF-STREET**  
13 **PARKING FACILITY LOCATED AT 260 GOLDEN GATE AVENUE, ~~PENALTIES FOR~~**  
14 **~~VIOLATION.~~**

15 No person shall park or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or unattended,  
16 within the off-street parking area of the Fire Department property commonly known as 260  
17 Golden Gate Avenue (Lot 7, Block 345) and located on the north side of Golden Gate Avenue  
18 approximately 83 feet east of Hyde Street except (1) an officer or employee of the City and  
19 County of San Francisco, having a permit therefor issued by the Fire Chief and during the  
20 conduct by such officer or employee of the business of the City and County, and (2) any  
21 person engaged in the loading and unloading of passengers upon or from vehicles. The Fire  
22 Chief shall have the authority to designate areas where various permittees shall be entitled to  
23 park or leave vehicles and no vehicle shall be parked or left in any area other than as so  
24 designated. *Violation of this Section is an infraction and any vehicle stopped, parked or left standing*  
25

1 ~~in any place prohibited by this Section is an obstruction to the free use of property and a nuisance~~  
2 ~~within the meaning of Division 4, Part III of the Civil Code of California relating to nuisances and~~  
3 ~~abatement thereof.~~

4 **SEC. 32.6.7. PARKING CONTROL, PORTIONS OF BRYANT STREET AND 24TH**  
5 **AVENUE; ~~PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION.~~**

6 No person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
7 unattended, at any time, at the following locations:

- 8 (a) On the north side of Bryant Street from Harriet Street to 160 feet westerly; and
- 9 (b) On the east side of 24th Avenue from 225 feet to 280 feet south of Santiago  
10 Street (55-foot zone);

11 except official City-owned San Francisco Police Department vehicles displaying a  
12 permit authorizing parking in such zones issued by the Chief of Police. The permit exceptions  
13 under this Section shall not apply when parking prohibition regulations for street-cleaning  
14 purposes are in effect. ~~Violation of this Section is an obstruction to the free use of property and a~~  
15 ~~nuisance within the meaning of Division 4, Part III of the Civil Code of California relating to nuisance~~  
16 ~~and the abatement thereof.~~

17 **SEC. 32.6.8. PARKING CONTROL, PORTION OF GRANT AVENUE; ~~PENALTIES~~**  
18 **~~FOR VIOLATION.~~**

19 No person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
20 unattended, at any time, at the parking space north of the police post (Koban) in front of 933  
21 Grant Avenue, except official City-owned SFPD police vehicles or police officer's private  
22 vehicles displaying a permit authorizing parking in this particular parking space issued by the  
23 Chief of Police. The permit exceptions under this section shall not apply when parking  
24 prohibition regulations for street cleaning purposes are in effect. ~~Violation of this section is an~~  
25

1 ~~obstruction to the free use of property and a nuisance within the meaning of Division 4, Part III of the~~  
2 ~~Civil Code of California relating to nuisance and the abatement thereof.~~

3 **SEC. 32.6.10. PARKING CONTROL, PORTION OF GOLDEN GATE AVENUE;**  
4 ~~PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION.~~

5 No person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
6 unattended, during the hours of 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 a.m., Monday through Friday, and all day  
7 Saturdays and Sundays, at the parking spaces on the north side of Golden Gate Avenue,  
8 from approximately 76 feet east of Hyde Street to 144 feet easterly in front of 260 Golden  
9 Gate Avenue, except official City-owned SFFD Fire Department vehicles. The exception  
10 under this Section shall not apply when parking prohibition regulations for street cleaning  
11 purposes are in effect. ~~Violation of this Section is an obstruction to the free use of property and a~~  
12 ~~nuisance within the meaning of Division 4, Part III of the Civil Code of California relating to nuisance~~  
13 ~~and the abatement thereof.~~

14 **SEC. 32.6.11. PARKING CONTROL, 1125 FILLMORE STREET;** ~~PENALTIES FOR~~  
15 ~~VIOLATION.~~

16 Except in parking stalls expressly designated for use by the public, while conducting  
17 business at the police facilities, no person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle,  
18 whether attended or unattended, at any time within the property lines of the off-street parking  
19 area of the Police Department property commonly known as 1125 Fillmore Street (Lot 13,  
20 Block 755) and located on the south side of Turk Street approximately 412.5 feet for the entire  
21 block between Fillmore and Steiner Streets and approximately 137.5 feet in the easterly side  
22 of Steiner Street and approximately 137.5 feet in the westerly side of Fillmore Street and  
23 approximately 67.5 feet on the northerly side of Golden Gate Avenue commencing  
24 approximately 70 feet from the easterly line of Steiner Street and the northerly line of Golden  
25

1 Gate Avenue, except those vehicles having a valid permit to park thereon issued by the Chief  
2 of Police, or being (1) a City-owned vehicle under the jurisdiction of the Police Department, or  
3 (2) a privately owned vehicle of a police officer or employee of the City and County of San  
4 Francisco during the conduct of the business of the City and County of San Francisco.

5 *Violation of this Section is an infraction and any vehicle stopped, parked, or left standing in any place*  
6 *prohibited by this Section is an obstruction to the free use of property and a nuisance within the*  
7 *meaning of Division 4, Part III of the Civil Code of California relating to the abatement thereof.*

8 **SEC. 32.6.12. PARKING CONTROL, PORTION OF HUNT STREET.**

9 No person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
10 unattended at any time, on the south side of Hunt Street within the rear property lines of the  
11 Fire Department building at 676 Howard Street, and from the east property line of this building  
12 to 40 feet easterly, except official City-owned San Francisco Fire Department vehicles  
13 displaying a permit authorizing parking in such zones issued by the Fire Chief. The permit  
14 exceptions under this Section shall not apply when parking prohibition regulations for street-  
15 cleaning purposes are in effect. *Violation of this Section is an obstruction to the free use of property*  
16 *and a nuisance within the meaning of Division 4, Part III of the Civil Code of California relating to*  
17 *nuisance and the abatement thereof.*

18 **SEC. 32.6.13. PARKING CONTROL, PORTION OF TREAT AVENUE.**

19 No person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
20 unattended at any time, on the west side of Treat Avenue from a point approximately 38 feet  
21 north of 15th Street to 66 feet northerly (66-foot zone) except official City-owned vehicles  
22 displaying a permit authorizing parking in this zone issued by the Director of Public Works.  
23 The permit exceptions under this Section shall not apply when parking prohibition regulations  
24 for street-cleaning purposes are in effect. *Violation of this Section is an obstruction to the free use*  
25

1 ~~of property and a nuisance within the meaning of Division 4, Part III of the Civil Code of California~~  
2 ~~relating to nuisance and the abatement thereof.~~

3 **SEC. 32.6.14. PARKING CONTROL, PORTIONS OF 20TH STREET;** ~~PENALTIES~~  
4 ~~FOR VIOLATION.~~

5 No person shall stop, park or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
6 unattended, at any time, on the south side of 20th Street between 3rd Street and Tennessee  
7 Street except official City-owned marked patrol San Francisco Police Department vehicles.  
8 The permit exceptions under this Section shall not apply when parking prohibition regulations  
9 for street-cleaning purposes are in effect. ~~Violation of this Section is an obstruction to the free use~~  
10 ~~of property and a nuisance within the meaning of Division 4, Part III of the Civil Code of California~~  
11 ~~relating to nuisances and the abatement thereof.~~

12 **SEC. 32.6.16. PARKING CONTROL, PORTION OF ELM STREET, BETWEEN VAN**  
13 **NESS AVENUE AND POLK STREET, FROM 8 A.M. TO 5 P.M., MONDAY THROUGH**  
14 **FRIDAY.**

15 No person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
16 unattended, on that portion of Elm Street, south side, from 41 feet to 129 feet west of Polk  
17 Street (88-foot zone), from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, except vehicles of  
18 Superior Court personnel displaying a permit authorizing parking in such zones issued by the  
19 Chief Administrative Officer. ~~Violation of this Section is an infraction, and any vehicle stopped,~~  
20 ~~parked or left standing in that portion of Elm Street in said time prohibited by this Section is an~~  
21 ~~obstruction to the free use of property and a nuisance within the meaning of Division 4, Part III of the~~  
22 ~~Civil Code of California relating to nuisance and the abatement thereof.~~

1           **SEC. 32.6.17. PARKING CONTROL, PORTION OF JACKSON STREET, BETWEEN**  
2 **SANSOME STREET AND CUSTOM HOUSE PLACE, FROM 6 A.M. TO 6 P.M., MONDAY**  
3 **THROUGH FRIDAY.**

4           No person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
5 unattended, on that portion of Jackson Street, south side, between Sansome Street and  
6 Custom House Place, from six a.m. to six p.m., Monday through Friday, except vehicles  
7 registered to the United States Immigration and Naturalization Service. *Violation of this Section*  
8 *is an infraction, and any vehicle stopped, parked or left standing in that portion of Jackson Street in*  
9 *said time prohibited by this Section is an obstruction to the free use of property and a nuisance within*  
10 *the meaning of Division 4, Part III of the Civil Code of California relating to nuisance and the*  
11 *abatement thereof.*

12           **SEC. 32.6.18. PARKING CONTROL, PORTION OF REDWOOD STREET, FROM**  
13 **8:00 A.M. TO 5:00 P.M., MONDAY THROUGH FRIDAY; ~~PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION.~~**

14           No person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
15 unattended, from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, on the south side of  
16 Redwood Street, from 35 feet to 115 feet west of Polk Street, except official City- owned  
17 vehicles displaying a valid permit issued by the City Administrator's Office authorizing parking  
18 in such zones. The permit exceptions under this Section shall not apply when parking  
19 prohibition regulations for street- cleaning purposes are in effect. *Violation of this Section is an*  
20 *obstruction to the free use of property and a nuisance within the meaning of Division 4, Part III of the*  
21 *Civil Code of California relating to nuisance and the abatement thereof.*

22           **SEC. 32.6.19. PARKING CONTROL, PORTIONS OF 2ND STREET, STANFORD**  
23 **STREET, AND TOWNSEND STREET; ~~PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION.~~**

1 No person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
2 unattended, at the following locations:

3 (a) 2nd Street, west side, from Townsend Street to 100 feet northerly (100-foot  
4 zone);

5 (b) Stanford Street, east side, from Townsend Street to 100 feet northerly (100-  
6 foot zone); and

7 (c) Townsend Street, north side, between 2nd and Stanford Streets

8 except official City-owned vehicles displaying a valid permit issued by the San  
9 Francisco Fire Department authorizing parking in such zones. The permit exceptions under  
10 this Section shall not apply when parking prohibition regulations for street-cleaning purposes  
11 are in effect. *Violation of this Section is an obstruction to the free use of property and a nuisance*  
12 *within the meaning of Division 4, Part III of the Civil Code of California relating to nuisance and the*  
13 *abatement thereof.*

14 **SEC. 32.6.20. PARKING CONTROL, PORTION OF 7TH STREET, ~~PENALTIES FOR~~**  
15 **~~VIOLATION.~~**

16 No person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
17 unattended, on the east side of 7th Street, from Bryant Street to 80 feet southerly (80-foot  
18 zone), except official City-owned vehicles displaying a valid permit issued by the Enforcement  
19 Division of the Department of Parking and Traffic authorizing parking in such zones. The  
20 permit exceptions under this Section shall not apply when parking prohibition regulations for  
21 street-cleaning purposes are in effect. *Violation of this Section is an obstruction to the free use of*  
22 *property and a nuisance within the meaning of Division 4, Part III of the Civil Code of California*  
23 *relating to nuisance and the abatement thereof.*

24  
25

1           **SEC. 32.6.21. PARKING CONTROL, PORTIONS OF DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT**

2 **PLACE; ~~PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION.~~**

3           No person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
4 unattended, at the following locations:

5           (a) Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, east side, from 32 feet to 224 feet north of  
6 Grove Street (192-foot zone, accommodating sixteen angled parking stalls);

7           (b) Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, west side, from 26 feet to 208 feet south of  
8 McAllister Street (182-foot zone, accommodating nine parking stalls);

9           (c) Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, west side, from 351 feet to 531 feet south of  
10 McAllister Street (180-foot zone, accommodating nine parking stalls); and

11           (d) Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, east side, from 184 feet to 208 feet south of  
12 McAllister Street (24-foot zone, accommodating two angled parking stalls)

13           unless such vehicles display a valid permit issued by the Department of Administrative  
14 Services authorizing parking in such zones. The permit exceptions under this Section shall not  
15 apply when parking prohibition regulations for street-cleaning purposes are in effect. *Violation*  
16 *of this Section is an obstruction to the free use of property and a nuisance within the meaning of*  
17 *Division 4, Part III of the Civil Code of California relating to nuisance and the abatement thereof.*

18           **SEC. 32.6.22. PARKING CONTROL, PORTIONS OF LECH WALESIA STREET;**

19 **~~PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION.~~**

20           No person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
21 unattended, at the following locations:

22           (a) Lech Walesa Street, north side, from 120 feet to 235 feet west of Polk Street  
23 (115-foot zone); and

1 (b) Lech Walesa Street, north side, from Polk Street to 89 feet westerly (89-foot  
2 zone) except official City-owned vehicles displaying a valid permit issued by the Department  
3 of Public Health authorizing parking in such zones. The permit exceptions under this Section  
4 shall not apply when parking prohibition regulations for street-cleaning purposes are in effect.  
5 *Violation of this Section is an obstruction to the free use of property and a nuisance within the meaning*  
6 *of Division 4, Part III of the Civil Code of California relating to nuisance and the abatement thereof.*

7 **SEC. 32.6.23. PARKING CONTROL, PORTION OF 6TH AVENUE;** ~~PENALTIES FOR~~  
8 ~~VIOLATION.~~

9 No person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
10 unattended, on the east side of 6th Avenue, from 272 feet to 334 feet south of Geary  
11 Boulevard (62-foot zone), except official City-owned vehicles displaying a valid permit issued  
12 by the San Francisco Police Department authorizing parking in such zones. The permit  
13 exceptions under this Section shall not apply when parking prohibition regulations for street-  
14 clearing purposes are in effect. *Violation of this Section is an obstruction to the free use of property*  
15 *and a nuisance within the meaning of Division 4, Part III of the Civil Code of California relating to*  
16 *nuisance and the abatement thereof.*

17 **SEC. 32.6.24. PARKING CONTROL, PORTION OF TURK STREET;** ~~PENALTIES FOR~~  
18 ~~VIOLATION.~~

19 No person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
20 unattended, on either the north or south side of Turk Street, from Laguna Street to 435 feet  
21 easterly (435-foot zones), except official City-owned vehicles displaying a valid permit issued  
22 by the Emergency Communications Department authorizing parking in such zones. The  
23 permit exceptions under this Section shall not apply when parking prohibition regulations for  
24 street-clearing purposes are in effect. *Violation of this Section is an obstruction to the free use of*  
25

1 ~~property and a nuisance within the meaning of Division 4, Part III of the Civil Code of California~~  
2 ~~relating to nuisance and the abatement thereof.~~

3 **SEC. 32.6.25. PARKING CONTROL, PORTION OF 7TH STREET;** ~~PENALTIES FOR~~  
4 ~~VIOLATION.~~

5 No person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
6 unattended, on the east side of 7th Street, from 178 feet to 246 feet north of Bryan Street (68-  
7 foot zone), except official City-owned vehicles displaying a valid permit issued by the San  
8 Francisco Sheriff's Department authorizing parking in such zones. The permit exceptions  
9 under this Section shall not apply when parking prohibition regulations for street-clearing  
10 purposes are in effect. ~~Violation of this Section is an obstruction to the free use of property and a~~  
11 ~~nuisance within the meaning of Division 4, Part III of the Civil Code of California relating to nuisance~~  
12 ~~and the abatement thereof.~~

13 **SEC. 32.6.26. PARKING CONTROL, PORTION OF BRANNAN STREET;**  
14 ~~PENALTIES.~~

15 No person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
16 unattended, at the following locations:

17 (a) Brannan Street, north side, from 15 feet to 115 feet east of Boardman Place (100-  
18 foot zone), and

19 (b) Brannan Street, north side, from 16 feet to 116 feet west of Boardman Place (100-  
20 foot zone);

21 except official City-owned vehicles displaying a valid permit issued by the District Attorney's  
22 Office authorizing parking in such zones. The permit exceptions under this Section shall not  
23 apply when parking prohibition regulations for street-cleaning purposes are in effect. ~~Violation~~

1 *of this Section is an obstruction to the free use of property and a nuisance within the meaning of*  
2 *Division 4, Part III of the Civil Code of California relating to nuisance and the abatement thereof.*

3 **SEC. 32.6.27. PARKING CONTROL, PORTION OF SOUTH VAN NESS AVENUE;**  
4 ~~**PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION.**~~

5 No person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
6 unattended, on the east side of South Van Ness Avenue, from 12th Street to 110 feet  
7 southerly (110-foot zone), from 6:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, except official  
8 vehicles displaying a valid permit issued by the State of California's Department of  
9 Corrections authorizing parking in such zones. The permit exceptions under this Section shall  
10 not apply when parking prohibition regulations for street-cleaning purposes are in effect.

11 *Violation of this Section is an obstruction to the free use of property and a nuisance within the meaning*  
12 *of Division 4, Part III of the Civil Code of California relating to nuisance and the abatement thereof.*

13 **SEC. 32.6.28. PARKING CONTROL, PAVED AREAS AND STRUCTURES ON THE**  
14 **CITY-OWNED PROPERTY OR THE HALL OF JUSTICE SITE;** ~~**PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION.**~~

15 No person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
16 unattended within the property lines of the area upon which the San Francisco Hall of Justice  
17 is situated, bounded by the northwesterly side of Brunt Street, the southwesterly side of  
18 Harriet Street, and southeasterly side of the right-of-way of the James Lick Freeway, and the  
19 northeasterly side of Seventh Street, except (1) those vehicles having a permit to park therein  
20 issued by the Chief of Police and being official City-owned vehicles under the jurisdiction of  
21 the Police Department, Sheriff's Department, District Attorney's Office, Public Defender's  
22 Office, Coroner's Department, Adult Probation Department, Office of Emergency Services,  
23 and (2) an officer or employee of the City and County of San Francisco having a permit  
24 therefor issued by the Chief Administrative Officer and during the conduct by such officer or  
25

1 employee of the business of the City and County, and (3) any person engaged in the loading  
2 or unloading of freight upon or from a vehicle on the structures or paved areas. *Violation of*  
3 *this Section is an infraction and any vehicle stopped, parked or left standing in any place prohibited by*  
4 *this Section is an obstruction to the free use of property and a nuisance within the meaning of Division*  
5 *4, Part III of the Civil Code of California relating to nuisances and the abatement thereof.*

6 **SEC. 32.6.29. PARKING CONTROL, PORTIONS OF EDDY AND JONES STREETS;**  
7 ***PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION.***

8 No person shall stop, park, or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
9 unattended, at the following locations:

10 (a) Eddy Street, south side, from Jones Street to 130 feet westerly (130-foot  
11 zone); and

12 (b) Jones Street, west side, from 24 feet to 107 feet south of Eddy Street (83-foot  
13 zone);

14 except official City-owned San Francisco Police Department vehicles displaying a  
15 permit authorizing parking in such zones issued by the Chief of Police. The permit exceptions  
16 under this Section shall not apply when parking prohibition regulations for street-cleaning  
17 purposes are in effect. *Violation of this Section is an obstruction to the free use of property and a*  
18 *nuisance within the meaning of Division 4, Part III of the Civil Code of California relating to nuisance*  
19 *and the abatement thereof.*

20 **SEC. 32.20. PARKING CONTROL, SPECIAL STALLS OR SPACES IN CITY-**  
21 **OWNED OFF- STREET PARKING FACILITIES;** ***PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION.***

22 No person shall stop, park or leave standing any vehicle, whether attended or  
23 unattended, within any stalls or spaces designated for the use by the physically handicapped  
24 within a City-owned off-street parking facility except those physically handicapped persons  
25

1 whose vehicles display either one of the distinguishing license plates issued to disabled  
2 persons pursuant to Section 22511.5 of the California Vehicle Code or to disabled veterans as  
3 specified in Section 9105 of the California Vehicle Code. The designation of such stalls shall  
4 be made as specified in Section 22511.8 of the California Vehicle Code. ~~Violation of this~~  
5 ~~Section is an infraction, and any vehicle stopped, parked, or left standing in any place prohibited by~~  
6 ~~this Section is an obstruction of the free use of property and a nuisance within the meaning of Division~~  
7 ~~4, Part III, of the Civil Code of the State of California relating to nuisances and the abatement thereof.~~

8 **SEC. 210. PENALTIES FOR VIOLATIONS.**

9 (a) Except as provided in Subsection (b) below, any person violating any of the  
10 provisions of this Article shall be guilty of an infraction and upon conviction thereof shall be  
11 punished by a fine of not less than \$15 nor more than \$50 for each offense as set forth by  
12 ordinance of the Board of Supervisors. Each such person shall be guilty of a separate and  
13 distinct offense for each and every hour of any unauthorized occupancy of a parking meter  
14 zone in violation of Section 202 of this Article after the issuance of the first citation therefor  
15 and shall be punished accordingly.

16 (b) Any person violating Section 202.1 shall be guilty of an infraction and upon  
17 conviction thereof shall be punished by a fine of not less than \$20 nor more than \$50 for each  
18 offense as set forth by ordinance of the Board of Supervisors. Each such person shall be guilty of a  
19 separate and distinct offense for each and every hour of any unauthorized occupancy of a  
20 parking meter zone in violation of Section 202.1 of this Article after the issuance of the first  
21 citation therefor and shall be punished accordingly.

22 **SEC. 412. PENALTY PROVISIONS.**

23 (a) It shall be unlawful and a violation of this Article, unless expressly provided to the  
24 contrary herein, for any person to stand or park a motor vehicle of a gross weight exceeding  
25

1 50 pounds for a period exceeding the time limitations established pursuant hereto. Said  
2 violation shall be an infraction punishable by (1) a fine not exceeding \$50 for a first violation;  
3 (2) a fine not exceeding \$100 for a second violation of the same ordinance within one year;  
4 and (3) a fine not exceeding \$250 for each additional violation of the same ordinance within  
5 one year as set forth by ordinance of the Board of Supervisors.

6 (b) It shall be unlawful and a violation of this Article for a person to falsely  
7 represent that he or she is eligible for a parking permit or to furnish false information in an  
8 application therefor submitted to either the institution or the Department of Parking and Traffic.

9 (c) It shall be unlawful and a violation of this Article for a person holding a valid  
10 parking permit issued pursuant hereto to permit the use or display of such permit on a motor  
11 vehicle other than that for which the permit is issued. Such conduct shall constitute an  
12 unlawful act and violation of this Article both by the person holding the valid parking permit  
13 and the person who so uses or displays the permit on a motor vehicle other than that for  
14 which it is issued.

15 (d) It shall be unlawful and a violation of this Article for a person to copy, produce  
16 or otherwise bring into existence a facsimile or counterfeit parking permit or permits without  
17 written authorization from the Director of Parking and Traffic. It shall further be unlawful and a  
18 violation of this Article for a person to knowingly use or display a facsimile or counterfeit  
19 parking permit in order to evade time limitations on parking applicable in a carpool permit  
20 parking area. Upon conviction thereof, a person shall be punishable by a fine not exceeding  
21 \$500 or by imprisonment for a period not exceeding 6 months, or both.

22 (e) The violations as set forth in the preceding subsections (b); and (c) ~~and (d)~~  
23 shall be infractions punishable by a fine not exceeding \$500.

24 APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
25

1 DENNIS J. HERRERA, City Attorney

2 By: \_\_\_\_\_  
3 JOHN I. KENNEDY  
4 Deputy City Attorney

5  
6  
7  
8  
9  
10  
11  
12  
13  
14  
15  
16  
17  
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25